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Earl of Dalkeith, 13-15 Dalkeith Place, Kettering
Proposal:
Vary the plan attached to the premises licence to include a new external customer area, including new outside bar at the rear and side of the premises; new access ramp at the rear of the premises; and amended access to Disabled WC.
Thank you for the consultation email for the variation to this premises licence dated 20th November 2014. 

I have reviewed the application in relation to the licensing objective the Prevention of Public Nuisance. The application is for an amended plan to include an external bar and substantial external seating area in the area known as “Angel Yard”. I also note that there is a planning application currently lodged with Kettering Borough Council for a change of use from the currently open yard to an A4 drinking establishment. There are existing residential properties directly adjacent to the external bar shown in picture 2 below and plan A – Cleveland Villa and Eastholme in Carrington Road are approximately 1m from the rear of the proposed bar building at the closet point, 6m to the front of the bar. 
My concerns are thus:

1. the premises currently has no external seating provision and  the proposed external seating area is substantial and likely to hold a large number of customers. On a warm evening when residents have their windows open this large amount of customers using the area until 2am on a Saturday and Sunday, and 0130am on other nights is likely to cause a public nuisance

2. the provision of an external bar area is in effect creating an outdoor pub. Again in warmer weather customers are likely to remain outside for longer periods of time using the external bar and seating area rather than as now where customers are restricted to buying and consuming alcohol inside, and smoking outside to the front of the premises away from residential accommodation in Carrington Road. 

3. the external bar is located on the residential boundary, only 6m from the residential facades,  and is likely to result in an increased level of customer noise in this location as customers queue here for drinks, in addition to the operational noise of the bar itself, for example, bottles clanging together.

The current licence does not permit regulated entertainment outside and the application does not seek to change this. The use of the external space as a seating area is not covered by the licensing regime provided that no alcohol is sold or consumed in the area. The Planning Control regime is therefore more suited to the control of customer noise from this perspective, in addition to the location of the proposed bar and controlling any external amplification.  I will be recommending to the Planning Committee that the hours of use for the seating area are restricted; the bar is either removed completely or moved to a less noise sensitive location and that no external amplification is permitted.

The sale and consumption of alcohol on the premises can be controlled via the Licensing regime and the Planning Control Regime. Paragraph 9.44 of section 182 guidance for the Licensing Act 2003 indicates that control should not be duplicitous. For this reason, I consider that the sale and consumption of alcohol in the outside area is more appropriately controlled through the Licensing Regime than through Planning.
I have raised my concerns directly with the applicant but have received no formal response. For this reason I have no alternative than to object to the application on the grounds that the application does not promote the licensing objective of The Prevention of Public Nuisance and recommend that the application be refused. The provision of the outside bar serving alcohol creates an “outside pub” which is likely to encourage customers to stay outside longer and create more noise. It should therefore not be permitted. No other venues in the area have an external bar serving alcohol and giving permission for this application would therefore not be keeping in character with the nature of the area, or protect the occupants of the residential properties from unreasonable noise.
If the Licensing Committee are minded to grant the application I would seek the inclusion of the following conditions appropriate to the sale of alcohol and the management of customer noise:

1. The sale of alcohol to customers in any part of the external area shown in the application plans is only permitted between 10am and 9pm Mondays to Thursdays, and Sundays and Bank Holidays; 10am to 10pm on Fridays and Saturdays.
2. The premises licence holder and his/her staff will be responsible for encouraging responsible behaviour to minimise noise in the external area at all times and shall ensure there are sufficient staff for this purpose.
3. Legible signage shall be erected in the external area where it can be clearly read by customers advising that the premises is in a residential area and requesting that customers keep noise to a minimum.

Regards
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Rachel Field
Team Leader
(Environmental Protection)

Picture 1 showing Angel Yard area 
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Picture 2 showing proximity of houses to proposed bar area
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